
City of Bandon         May 5, 2022 
C/O Hearings Officer 
Planning Department 
PO Box 67 
Bandon, OR 97411 
 
Re: Appeal of Planning Application 22-001; 4000 Beach Loop Drive SW (#3) 
 
Bandon Hearings Officer, 
 

We are the property owners at the above referenced address and have previously submitted 
two separate documents related to our appeal. It has additionally come to our attention that there is a 
question as to whether our existing deck represents a conforming or non-conforming structure, as it 
relates to the code in question [code 17.20.040(B)(2)] that states in the third sentence: 

“Where topography permits, new structures should be built in line with other existing structures 
and not extend farther out into those viewscapes.”  

As we have shown conclusively through our various uploaded documents, the new, proposed 
decks will be built in line with our current existing structure (deck) and will NOT extend farther out into 
the viewscape. Our house, built in 1976, was clearly built originally with an attached deck, as evidence of 
the below picutre of our pantry that contains a door original to the house (Figure 1), which exits at an 
elevation above the ground (Figure 2). 

         

Figure 1: View from pantry door to elevated deck.           Figure 2: View from outside elevated deck to pantry exit. 
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 Based on this original design for the house and original structure, it is supportive of the deck 
being an original design for the house. Further evidence can be seen from the below brochure (Figure 3) 
which we have in our possession from when the original owner of the home (Robert “Bob” Griffin) sold 
the home in 1981, only 6 years after it had been built.  

 

Figure 3: Bandon Realty pamphlet from 1981 when the house was listed on the real estate market, showing the name of the 
original owner (highlighted in yellow) as the contact for the listing.  

 



 To confirm this time period for the listing and brochure, I would like to present, as evidence, a 
document from the Coos County Assessor’s office showing that the property transferred from the 
Griffin’s possession to the Brandt’s possession on September 16, 1981 (Figure 4), confirming that this 
document and the pictures/descriptions contained within it date from that period. 

 

Figure 4: Official record of the property at 4000 Beach Loop Drive showing the house was sold from Mr. Griffin to Mr. and Mrs. 
Brandt, with a date of entry on September 16, 1981 (highlighted).  

 

Within this real estate pamphlet, there are a few key features which support our position as to 
the original position of this deck, thereby consistent with its designation as a CONFORMING structure, as 
qualified under the code in question regarding viewscapes.   Our current hot tub, which was here at the 
time we purchased the home, was in the same position 40 years ago. The pamphlet clearly references 
the “Outdoor Cedar Hot Tub with spectacular view of Ocean” (Figure 5). 



 

Figure 5: Bandon Realty pamphlet from 1981 when the house was listed on the real estate market, showing that the Outdoor 
cedar hot tub (highlighted in yellow) was listed as a feature of this home.  

 Alone, that would not be evidence that the outdoor hot tub was on a deck. However, further 
inspection of pictures included in the 1981 pamphlet for 4000 Beach Loop Drive, shows the outdoor 
deck through the dining room window, with a table and chairs (and umbrella), also seen on the elevated 
outdoor deck (Figures 6 and 7).  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 6: Bandon Realty pamphlet from 1981 when the house was listed on the real estate market, showing a picture of our 
dining room in which, our current deck can be seen through the windows (arrow).  

 



 

Figure 7: Close up view of picture from the Bandon Realty pamphlet from 1981 when the house was listed on the real estate 
market, showing the elevated cedar hot tub (arrow) and table/chairs/yellow umbrella (arrows) on the elevated deck outside of 
the dining room window.  

  

 As an additional reference, we are including a picture taken today (May 5, 2022) from the same 
viewpoint (Figure 8), showing the same structures, kitchen peninsula with glass cabinets, and windows 
looking out to the current deck in question. As you can see, the hot tub is in the same place as it was 
over 40 years ago, interestingly, as are our pub table and chairs (it is an elevated pub table, as can be 
additionally seen in Figures 1 and 2, which is why it appears higher than the table set from 1981). Figure 
9 also shows our current hot tub position as a reference, to fully appreciate the position on the deck and 
to confirm the appearance of it from a distance in Figure 8. 

Umbrella and chairs 
on the elevated 
deck in 1981. 

View of elevated Cedar 
Hot Tub, as referenced 
in pamphlet 



 

Figure 8: Current view of our home (picture taken May 5, 2022) showing our pub table and chairs (arrow), as well as our hot tub 
(arrow) on the elevated deck outside of the dining room window.  
 

 

Figure 9: Current view of our hot tub (picture taken May 5, 2022) on our elevated deck.  
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 It is our opinion that these pictures and documents provide additional proof that our current 
deck has been in place since the time our house was built in 1976, and based on the condition of our 
current deck, it is not surprising as it is in desperate need of repair/replacement and is becoming a 
hazard. Therefore, this deck should be considered a conforming structure and further substantiates our 
use of this deck as an “existing structure,” as designated in code 17.20.040(B)(2), from which our 
proposed new decks will be built in line with and not extend farther out into those viewscapes. 

 
Respectfully,  
 
 
Paul J. Michaels and Benjamin J Vouk 
4000 Beach Loop Drive SW 
Bandon, OR 97411 
 

 


